

LEGAL: HB 342 AMENDS KRS 158.1411 REVISING THE FINANCIAL LITERACY COURSE GRADUATION REQUIREMENT.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: COST ASSOCIATED WITH COURSE INSTRUCTION OR DEVELOPMENT
LEGAL: HB 535 (2023) REQUIRES THE BOARD, BEGINNING WITH THE 2025-2026 SCHOOL YEAR, TO CHOOSE A CIVIC LITERACY COURSE OR A CIVICS EXAM AS PART OF THE STATE REQUIREMENTS FOR A REGULAR HIGH SCHOOL DIPLOMA.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: COST ASSOCIATED WITH COURSE INSTRUCTION OR DEVELOPMENT AND ADMINISTRATION OF AN EXAM

LEGAL: 704 KAR 3:303 HAS BEEN REPEALED, 703 KAR 4:060 HAS EXPIRED, AND 704 KAR 3:306 HAS BEEN RECODIFIED.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: NONE ANTICIPATED

LEGAL: REVISIONS TO 704 KAR 3:305 AMEND THE GRADUATION REQUIREMENTS.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: NONE ANTICIPATED

LEGAL: HB 190 AMENDS KRS 158.6453 RELATED TO ADVANCED COURSEWORK OFFERINGS.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: NONE ANTICIPATED

CURRICULUM AND INSTRUCTION

08.113

Graduation Requirements

In support of student development goals set out in KRS 158.6451 and the Kentucky Academic Standards, students must complete a minimum of twenty-two (22) credits, ~~including demonstrated performance-based competency in technology~~, and all other state and local requirements in order to graduate from high school in the District. Each school's curriculum guide (approved each January) contains complete details.

Credits shall include content standards as provided by the Kentucky Academic Standards established in 704 KAR Chapter 8. Additional standards-based learning experiences shall align to the student's individual learning plan and shall consist of standards-based content.

Each student shall be required to earn the following ten (10) foundational credits:

- (a) English/language arts – two (2) credits (English I and II);
- (b) Social studies – two (2) credits;
- (c) Mathematics – two (2) credits (Algebra I and Geometry);
- (d) Science – two (2) credits that shall incorporate lab-based scientific investigation experiences;
- (e) Health – one-half (1/2) credit;
- (f) Physical education – one-half (1/2) credit; and
- (g) Visual and performing arts – one (1) credit.

Each student shall be required to earn the following twelve (12) personalized credits:

- (a) Two (2) additional English/language arts credits;
- (b) Two (2) additional mathematics credits;
- (c) One (1) additional science credit;
- (d) One (1) additional social studies credit; and
- (e) Academic and career interest standards-based learning experiences – six (6) credits including four (4) standards-based learning experiences.

Each student shall complete the following additional requirements:

- (a) Successfully demonstrate performance-based technology;
- (b) Successfully meet the civics requirement; and
- (c) Successfully complete one (1) or more courses or programs that meet the financial literacy requirements.

ADVANCED COURSEWORK

Students that successfully complete high school advanced coursework shall receive credit toward graduation in accordance with state law.⁵

Graduation Requirements

CIVICS ~~EXAM~~ REQUIREMENT

~~Students wishing to receive a regular diploma must pass a civics test made up of one hundred (100) questions selected from the civics test administered to persons seeking to become naturalized citizens and prepared or approved by the Board. A minimum score of sixty percent (60%) is required to pass the test and students may take the test as many times as needed to pass. Students that have passed a similar test within the previous five (5) years shall be exempt from this civics test. This shall be subject to the requirements and accommodations of a student's individualized education program (IEP) or a Section 504 Plan.⁴~~

Beginning with the entering ninth grade class of the 2025-2026 school year, and each year thereafter, graduation requirements for each student in every public high school in Kentucky graduating with a regular diploma shall include successful completion of either:

- a) A one-half (1/2) credit course in civic literacy meeting statutory curriculum and standards requirements; or
- b) A civics test composed of one hundred (100) questions drawn from those that are set forth within the civics test administered by the United States Citizenship and Immigration Services to persons seeking to become naturalized citizens.

The Board shall determine which option shall be required for graduates of the District.

If the Board requires completion of the civics test, the Board shall prepare or approve the test as described. The Board shall disseminate the test and it be administered by each high school in the District. By September 1, 2026, and each year thereafter, the District requiring a civics test for graduation shall submit annual testing data to the Kentucky Department of Education.

A minimum score of seventy percent (70%) is required to pass the test and students may take the test as many times as needed to pass without the use of instructional aids during testing including but not limited to textbooks and internet browser searching. A student shall not receive a regular high school diploma until the student successfully completes the test. Students that have passed a similar test within the previous five (5) years may provide the Board with evidence of successful completion and shall not be required to take the test. The test requirement shall be subject to the requirements and accommodations of a student's individualized education program (IEP) or a Section 504 Plan.⁴

FINANCIAL LITERACY REQUIREMENT

For students entering grade nine (9) on or after July 1, 2025, successful completion of one (1) credit course in financial literacy. The course shall align to the student's individual learning plan and comply with KRS 158.1411.

The Superintendent, after consultation with the Board, the school-based decision-making council, and the Principal of each high school, shall determine curricula for course offerings that are aligned with the financial literacy academic standards.

The financial literacy course requirement shall be accepted as an elective course requirement for high school graduation.

Graduation Requirements

INDIVIDUAL LEARNING PLAN (ILP)

The development of the Individual Learning Plan (ILP) for each student shall be established within the first ninety (90) days of the sixth (6th) grade year and shall ~~be focused~~focus on career exploration and related postsecondary education and training needs.

ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS OF THE BOARD

In addition to the content requirements established by the Kentucky Academic Standards, and the credits required by the minimum requirements for high school graduation in 704 KAR 3:305, the Board may impose other requirements for graduation from high school. However, the Board shall not adopt any graduation requirements that include achieving a minimum score on a statewide assessment.

~~FOR STUDENTS ENTERING GRADE NINE (9) ON OR AFTER THE FIRST DAY OF THE 2020-2021 ACADEMIC YEAR~~

~~Credits shall include content standards as provided by the Kentucky Academic Standards established in 704 KAR 3:303 and 704 KAR Chapter 8. The required credits and demonstrated competencies shall include the following minimum requirements:~~

English/Language Arts	Four (4) Credits total (English I and II plus two (2) credits aligned to the student's ILP)
Social Studies	Three (3) Credits total (Two (2) plus one (1) credit aligned to the student's ILP)
Mathematics	Four (4) Credits total (Algebra I and Geometry plus two (2) credits aligned to the student's ILP)
Science	Three (3) Credits total (Two (2) credits incorporating lab-based scientific investigation experiences plus one (1) credit aligned to the student's ILP)
Health	One half (1/2) Credit
P.E.	One half (1/2) Credit
Visual and Performing Arts	One (1) Credit or a standards based specialized arts course based on the student's ILP
Academic and Career Interest Standards based Learning Experiences	Five (5) Credits total (One (1) plus four (4) standards based credits in an academic or career interest based on the student's ILP)
Technology	One (1) Credit
Financial Literacy	One (1) or more courses or programs that meet the financial literacy requirements pursuant to KRS 158.1411.

Graduation Requirements

ADDITIONAL LOCALLY ESTABLISHED GRADUATION REQUIREMENTS

- 1) Students must meet one of the following criteria in order to be eligible for graduation:
 - a. Achieve Post-Secondary Readiness.
 - b. Successfully complete an Alternate Petition.
- 2) Successfully complete a minimum of fifty percent (50%) of registered courses during the final year of high school.
- 3) Each school shall submit in the curriculum guide for Board approval a required number of elective credits for the incoming freshman cohort.

COMMENCEMENT CEREMONY

There will be a single commencement ceremony for each school, regardless of diploma earned. The Principal may make the determination to honor or signify levels of achievement through the use of cords, sashes or other visible distinctions. The diploma shall bear the name of the school where the student was enrolled on the final day prior to graduation and shall display the diploma program the student completed.

In order to participate in the high school commencement exercises, students must comply with the following requirements:

1. Have no more than ten (10) cumulative unexcused absences during their final year.
2. Be free of all disciplinary action (must complete all detentions, Friday/Saturday School, and complete any suspension).
3. Fulfill all restitution on any outstanding financial obligations (fees, fines, loans, cafeteria charges, etc.)
4. Be in attendance and conduct themselves in a responsible and orderly manner during all graduation ceremony practices.
5. Commit no egregious offenses that, in the Principal's judgment, disqualify a student from participation in commencement ceremonies.

GRADUATION HONORS

Graduation honors such as Top Ten, honor graduates, etc. will be determined based on weighted GPAs, which shall include all coursework taken while enrolled in high school. The graduating class will have two (2) distinctions for students who achieve at least a 4.0 GPA on a weighted scale. These shall be designated as follows:

- * Magna Cum Laude – Weighted GPA of 4.0 - 4.249
- * Summa Cum Laude – Weighted GPA of 4.25 or above
- * Specific Designations (e.g. – valedictorian, salutatorian, etc.) will not be applicable for Bullitt County High Schools.

WORK ETHIC SEAL

- * Students meeting the requirements jointly developed by the District and the Bullitt County Chamber of Commerce shall have a seal affixed to their diploma attesting to their successful completion of the Work Ethic certificate program.

for the full
8 semesters
of high
school

Graduation Requirements**MIDDLE SCHOOL CREDIT**

The Board may approve high school credit for high school equivalent classes completed in middle school if the following criteria are met:

- The following courses are eligible for high school credit if offered in middle school: Algebra I, Geometry, Spanish I, English I, Earth Space, Health, Government, Economics, French I, Physical Education, and Digital Literacy.
- The student demonstrates mastery of middle school level content as specified in the Kentucky Academic Standards and has either successfully completed any prerequisite classes or has a minimum score identified by a norm or criterion-based assessment established and/or approved by BCPS.
- For, Health, Digital Literacy, Spanish I, French I, Government, and Economics, students will pass with a minimum of eighty percent (80%) in order to earn high school credit.
- High school courses offered at the middle school level teach and assess the same Kentucky Academic Standards as those offered at the high school level. ~~In order to earn high school credit, middle school students must pass a District comprehensive exam in Algebra I, English I, Earth Space Science, and Geometry with an eighty percent (80%) or higher.~~ *Add* Students successfully completing high school credit courses during middle school will receive transcript credit. However, the grades earned in these courses will not be factored into their high school Grade Point Average (GPA). *Delete.*
- The middle school level course is taught by teachers with either secondary or middle school level certification with the appropriate content specialization or accessed through on-line platform monitored and assisted by a certified teacher, or a blended classroom environment.

In keeping with statutory requirements, the District shall accept for credit toward graduation and completion of high school course requirements an advanced placement or a high school equivalent course taken by a student in grades 5, 6, 7, or 8 if that student attains performance levels expected of high school students in the District as determined by achieving a score of "3" or higher on a College Board Advanced Placement examination or a grade of "B" or better in a high school equivalent.²

OTHER PROVISIONS

Students participating in the Bullitt Advanced Math and Science (BAMS) program may graduate early if they have met all high school requirements and have submitted the early graduation request to the BAMS counselor for consideration prior to April 1. Such early graduation shall only be granted once the BAMS Counselor has received the student's final grades from the Jefferson Community and Technical College (JCTC).

BAMS students who graduate early shall be allowed to practice and participate in high school and JCTC graduation activities.

Graduation Requirements

OTHER PROVISIONS (CONTINUED)

The Board, Superintendent, Principal, or teacher may award special recognition to students. In addition, the Board may award a diploma to a student posthumously indicating graduation with the class with which the student was expected to graduate.

For disabled students, the IEP or 504 Accommodation Plan will be the driving document behind the determination of the completion of the student's educational program. Students with disabilities will be required to meet the established graduation requirements unless otherwise stated on their IEP or 504 Accommodation Plan.

Consistent with the District's graduation practices for all students, an alternative high school diploma shall be awarded to students with disabilities in compliance with applicable legal requirements. In addition, former students may submit to the Superintendent a request that the District provide them with an alternative high school diploma to replace the certificate of attainment they received at time of graduation from the District.³

Students shall have completed a minimum of eight (8) semesters of attendance in grades nine (9) through twelve (12) before graduation unless they have had a request for early graduation approved by the Board of Education. (For an exception, see Policy 08.11311 Early Graduation Program.)

A student who is at least seventeen (17) years of age and who is a state agency child, as defined in KRS 158.135, shall be eligible to seek attainment of a High School Equivalency Diploma.

The Board may substitute an integrated, applied, interdisciplinary, occupational, technical, or higher-level course for a required course if the alternative course provides rigorous content.

DIPLOMAS FOR VETERANS

In keeping with statute and regulation, the Board shall award an authentic high school diploma to an honorably discharged veteran who did not complete high school prior to being inducted into the United States Armed Forces during World War II, the Korean conflict, or the Vietnam War.¹

REFERENCES:

¹KRS 40.010; KRS 158.140; 704 KAR 7:140

²KRS 158.622

³KRS 156.160; 20 U.S.C. § 1414

⁴KRS 158.141

~~⁵KRS 160.348; KRS 158.622~~

KRS 156.027; KRS 158.135

KRS 158.1411; KRS 158.1413; KRS 158.142; KRS 158.143; KRS 158.183

KRS 158.281; KRS 158.302; KRS 158.645; KRS 158.6451; ~~KRS 158.6453~~; KRS 158.860

13 KAR 2:020; 702 KAR 7:125; ~~703 KAR 4:060~~

~~704 KAR 3:303~~; 704 KAR 3:305; ~~704 KAR 3:306~~; 704 KAR 3:535; 704 KAR 7:090

704 KAR Chapter 8

OAG 78348; OAG 82386

~~Kentucky Academic Standards~~

Graduation Requirements

RELATED POLICIES:

08.1122; 08.1131; 08.11311; 08.14; 08.22; 08.222; 08.4
09.126 (re: requirements/exceptions for students from military families)

RELATED PROCEDURE:

09.12 AP.25

LEGAL: REVISIONS TO 704 KAR 3:305 AMEND THE PERFORMANCE-BASED AND STANDARDS-BASED CREDIT REQUIREMENTS.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: NONE ANTICIPATED

LEGAL: 704 KAR 3:303 HAS BEEN REPEALED.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: NONE ANTICIPATED

CURRICULUM AND INSTRUCTION

08.1131

Alternative Credit Options

In addition to regular classroom-based instruction, students may earn credit through the following means.

ONLINE COURSES

High school students may also earn credit to be applied toward graduation requirements by completing online courses offered through agencies approved by the Board. Credit from an online course may be earned only in the following circumstances:

1. The course is approved by the Principal in accordance with SBDM council policies;
2. The course will serve as a supplement to extend homebound instruction;
3. The student has been expelled or alternatively placed from the regular school setting, but educational services are to be continued; or
4. The Principal, with agreement from the student's teachers and parents/guardians, determines the student requires a differentiated or accelerated learning environment or the student is participating in a District approved alternative program.

The District shall recognize only those online courses that meet the coursework adopted by the Kentucky Department of Education and outlined in the school's course description adopted by SBDM Council.

As determined by school/council policy, students applying for permission to take an online course shall complete prerequisites and provide teacher/counselor recommendations to confirm the student possesses the maturity level needed to function effectively in an online learning environment. The student must meet eligibility requirements as outlined in 08.1131 AP.1, Online courses may be subject to review by the Superintendent/designee for conformance with Kentucky Academic Standards and District graduation requirements. In addition, the express approval of the Principal/designee shall be obtained before a student enrolls in an online course. The school must receive an official record of the final grade before credit toward graduation will be recognized.

PAYMENT OF FEES

Provided online courses are part of the student's regular school day coursework and within budgetary parameters, the tuition fee and other costs for an online course shall be borne by the District for students enrolled full-time, from funds that have been allocated to the school. The Superintendent shall determine, within the budget adopted by the Board, whether additional funding shall be granted, based on supporting data provided by the Principal. The Board may pay the fee for expelled students who are permitted to take online courses in alternative settings. If the student requests and is approved to take an online course beyond the school's traditional schedule the cost shall be borne by the student.

Alternative Credit Options**DUAL CREDIT/COLLEGE CREDIT**

To differentiate/accelerate the curriculum to meet the needs of students, the District shall recognize courses from approved postsecondary education institutions. Students shall receive one (1) high school credit for every three (3) semester hours of college work. Grades shall be calculated in weighted form for class rank and GPA and included in the student's transcript. Dual credit courses shall be available to those students who meet criteria established by school policy. Failure to complete the course shall be recorded according to school policy. Credit may be earned in accordance with the following requirements:

1. Dual credit shall be provided by a recognized postsecondary institution approved by the Board.
2. Students shall be responsible for all related academic costs.
3. Students shall submit a written request to the Principal or his/her designee prior to taking the course. All off-campus courses and class schedules must be pre-approved by the Principal or his/her designee.
4. Students must present documentation supporting enrollment in the postsecondary institution.
5. Students shall provide verification of course completion and grade earned. The high school must receive an official record of the final grade before credit toward graduation will be recognized.

DUAL-CREDIT SCHOLARSHIP PROGRAM

The District may offer the opportunity for students to earn dual-credits through the Kentucky Dual-Credit Scholarship Program and follows the guidelines outlined in the "*Kentucky Council on Postsecondary Education and Kentucky Department of Education Dual Credit Policy for Kentucky Public and Participating Postsecondary Institutions and Secondary Schools*," located on the Kentucky Department of Education website.

PERFORMANCE-BASED CREDITS

~~In addition to Carnegie units, s~~Students may earn credit toward high school graduation through the District's ~~standards-based, performance-based credit system, that complies with requirements of Kentucky Administrative Regulation, Procedures for developing and amending the system~~ The system shall ~~include~~address the following:

1. ~~Procedures for developing and amending a performance-based credit system;~~
2. Conditions under which each high school may grant performance-based credits and the related performance descriptors and assessments;
3. Objective grading and reporting procedures;
4. ~~Alignment to C~~content standards established in ~~704 KAR 3:303 and~~ 704 KAR Chapter 8;
5. The extent to which state-provided assessments will be used;
6. The ability for students to demonstrate proficiency and earn credit for learning acquired outside of school or in prior learning; and

Alternative Credit Options**PERFORMANCE-BASED CREDITS (CONTINUED)**

7. Criteria to ensure that internships, cooperative learning experiences, and other learning in the school and community are:
- Designed to further student progress towards the Individual Learning Plan;
 - Supervised by qualified instructors; and
 - Aligned with State and District content and performance standards.

REFERENCES:

[KRS 157.320](#)

KRS 158.622

KRS 164.786

~~704 KAR 3:303~~; 704 KAR 3:305; 704 KAR Chapter 8

Formatted: ksba normal

RELATED POLICIES:

[08.1122](#); 08.113; 08.11311; 08.2323; 09.1221; [09.1224](#); 09.3; 09.435

LEGAL: REVISIONS TO 704 KAR 3:305 AMEND THE EARLY GRADUATION PROGRAM.
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: NONE ANTICIPATED

CURRICULUM AND INSTRUCTION

08.11311

Early Graduation Program

Students who meet all applicable legal requirements shall be eligible for the Early Graduation Program (EGP) in relation to receipt of a graduation diploma and an Early Graduation Certificate. Students wishing to participate in the EGP shall notify the secondary school Principal by submitting the Early Graduation Program Letter of Intent Form, available on the Kentucky Department of Education (KDE) website, in writing at the beginning of grade nine (9) or as soon as the intent is known to the student, but no later than the first thirty (30) school days of the academic year in which the student intends to graduate.

A student shall not be prohibited from completing the EGP if the student meets all requirements. Students who enroll in the EGP and meet all applicable legal requirements shall receive a high school diploma, and an Early Graduation Scholarship Certificate, and scholarship award.

A Letter of Intent to Apply shall be entered into the student information system by October 15 of the year the student intends to graduate.

~~A student shall complete all requirements applicable to the academic year in which the student intends to graduate as established in administrative regulation by the Kentucky Board of Education.~~

A student who has indicated an intent to complete the EGP may participate in the state administration of the college entrance exam prior to the junior year, if needed.

~~For students wishing to participate in the EGP and earn an Early Graduation Certificate and scholarship the Superintendent/designee The District shall provide each high school with a policy established by the Board for students wishing to participate in the EGP. The policy shall include provide:~~

- a. Criteria for supporting the development and monitoring of the student's ILP;
- b. Goal planning related to the demonstration attainment of established District of the capacities listed in KRS 158.645 and the essential workplace ethics characteristics listed in KRS 158.1413(1) programs;
- c. Completion of a professional resume; and
- d. Completion of one (1) postsecondary admissions application that may be used at a Kentucky public two (2) year community and technical college, or a Kentucky four (4) year public or non-profit independent institution accredited by the Southern Association of Colleges and Schools.

Each EGP participant, with the support of the comprehensive school counselor/designee, shall:

- a. Submit the Early Graduation Program Student Letter of Intent Form, signed by the student's parents, to the Principal as soon as the intent is known to the student, but no later than the first thirty (30) school days of the academic year in which the student intends to graduate;
- a.b. Identify all EGP requirements and develop a strategy within the ILP for meeting those requirements, including the District's established workplace ethics program; and
- b.c. Complete an entrance interview with the Principal/designee to discuss postsecondary goals and career aspirations.

Early Graduation Program**EARLY GRADUATION PROGRAM (EGP) (CONTINUED)**

- d. Meet the college readiness benchmarks established by the Council on Postsecondary Education in 13 KAR 2:020 for placement in credit-bearing courses without the need for remediation;
- e. Earn the ten (10) foundational credits listed in 704 KAR 3:305;
- f. Successfully complete one (1) or more courses or programs that meet the financial literacy requirement and Kentucky Academic Standards;
- g. Successfully meet the civics requirement; and
- h. Successfully complete the EGP performance-based project, portfolio, or capstone.

~~By July 1, 2024,~~ Each high school shall ~~develop~~determine performance descriptors and evaluation procedures for an EGP performance-based project, portfolio, or capstone ~~required for students who intend to complete the EGP beginning with the 2024-2025 academic year.~~

Performance descriptors and evaluation procedures ~~developed by the high school~~ shall ~~be designed to provide an opportunity for the students an opportunity~~ to demonstrate attainment of the ~~following the~~ critical knowledge, skills, and capacities required for post-secondary and career success ~~and shall include:~~

- a. Demonstration of capacities listed in KRS 158.645 and the essential workplace ethics characteristics listed in KRS 158.1413(1)~~Attainment of essential workplace ethics program components;~~
- b. Demonstration of an ability to apply the academic standards as a lifelong learner and contributing member of society;
- c. Demonstration of written and verbal communication skills needed for post-secondary and career success; and
- d. Demonstration of an ability to think critically, synthesize information, and draw conclusions.

~~By July 1, 2024, the performance-based project, portfolio, or capstone shall be required for completion of the EGP.~~

Each high school shall maintain and make readily available to the ~~KDE~~Kentucky Department of Education the EGP participant's performance-based project, portfolio, or capstone for a minimum of five (5) years.

Any student seeking to graduate early who receives services deemed essential by the District shall engage in meaningful consultation with a school-based mental health services provider on the creation of a continuity of services plan prior to graduation.

The District shall ensure the creation of a continuity of services plan for all students identified as a homeless child, a migratory child, or youth engaged in foster care. A transition plan shall be completed for children aging out of foster care.

Formatted: Numbered + Level: 1 + Numbering Style: a, b, c, ... + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at: 0.25" + Indent at: 0.5"

Early Graduation Program

AWARDING GRADUATION CREDIT

The District shall award credit toward high school graduation based on:

Formatted: ksba normal

- a. A standards-based Carnegie unit credit that shall consist of at least 120 hours of instructional time in one (1) subject; or
- b. A performance-based credit based on the Kentucky Academic Standards established in 704 KAR Chapter 8.

A District that awards performance-based credit shall adopt a policy that awards performance-based credit toward high school graduation for satisfactory demonstration of learning based on rigorous performance standards aligned to 704 KAR Chapter 8. The school shall establish performance descriptor and evaluation procedures to determine if the content and performance standards have been met.

Formatted: ksba normal

Performance-based credit criteria are contained in 704 KAR 3:305.

REFERENCES:

KRS 158.1413; KRS 158.142; KRS 158.645
704 KAR 3:305; 704 KAR Chapter 8

RELATED POLICIES:

08.1122; 08.113; 08.1131

LEGAL: HB 132 AMENDS KRS 158.033 INCLUDING THAT HOME OR HOSPITAL INSTRUCTION FOR
INPATIENT FACILITY IS EFFECTIVE THE DAY OF ADMITTANCE.
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: INCREASE IN ADA
LEGAL: 704 KAR 3:303 HAS BEEN REPEALED.
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: NONE ANTICIPATED

CURRICULUM AND INSTRUCTION

08.1312

Home/Hospital Instruction

PURPOSE

Home/hospital instruction provides educational services to students who cannot attend school for extended periods due to temporary or recurring conditions, including fractures, surgical recuperation, or other physical, health, or mental conditions. An “extended period” refers to an absence for more than five (5) consecutive school days. For a student admitted to an inpatient facility, the student may receive home/hospital instruction effective on the date of admittance.

For purposes of KRS 157.360, a student who receives home/hospital instruction for a minimum of two (2) instructional sessions per week, with a minimum of one (1) hour of instruction per session, by a certified teacher provided by the Board, shall equal the student attending five (5) days in school. An instructional session may be delivered in person, electronically, or through other means established in regulation. A parent/guardian or responsible adult must be present in the home/hospital room during the time the home/hospital teacher is present or is otherwise delivering instruction.

ELIGIBILITY

Determination of a student’s eligibility and provision of services for home/hospital instruction shall be made in compliance with applicable statutes and regulations. In accordance with KRS 159.030(2), the Board shall require evidence for students exempted from school attendance more than six (6) months.

At any time based on changes in the student’s condition, the home/hospital review committee may schedule a review of the student’s continued eligibility for home/hospital instruction. Eligibility for home/hospital instruction shall cease for students placed by the review committee if the student works, plays sports, or participates in extracurricular activities. For students with a 504 plan, eligibility for home/hospital instruction shall not cease if the student works, plays sports, or participates in extracurricular activities if participation is consistent with the student’s 504 plan.

The Admissions and Release Committee (ARC) shall determine placement in home/hospital instruction for a student with disabilities. The 504 Team for a student may facilitate submission of an application to the review committee. The Admissions and Release Committee (ARC) or 504 Team considering home/hospital instruction placements will include the District health coordinator and the home/hospital instruction teacher.

SECONDARY STUDENTS

The number of credits to be carried during home/hospital instruction placement is determined on a case-by-case basis according to the following criteria:

1. The student’s ability to work independently during extended periods without direct assistance.
2. The student’s capacity to complete assignments within a reasonable time frame.
3. The likelihood that the student will be able to complete course criteria required for graduation, as required by the Kentucky Academic Standards.
4. When considering the student’s condition, should s/he take a full or reduced course load? If a reduced course load is appropriate, the committee shall determine the number of courses the student may take.

Home/Hospital Instruction

SECONDARY STUDENTS (CONTINUED)

5. The recommendation of the student's teachers.
6. The recommendation of the student's school counselor.
7. The recommendation of the Admissions and Release Committee (ARC) or 504 Team, when applicable.

STUDENTS WITH DISABILITIES

Based on documentation of student need, including medical or mental health evaluation information, a student with disabilities may be placed in the home/hospital instructional program if his/her individual education plan (IEP) specifies such placement is the least restrictive environment for providing services. The ARC Chair shall provide written notice of eligibility and documentation to the District Director of Pupil Personnel for purposes of program enrollment.

The Admissions and Release Committee (ARC) or 504 Team shall determine on a case-by-case basis the type and extent of home/hospital services for a student, including the number of credits a student at the secondary level will be permitted to earn while on home/hospital instruction.

REFERENCES:

KRS 157.360; KRS 158.033; KRS 159.030

702 KAR 7:150

~~704 KAR 3:303~~

704 KAR Chapter 8

707 KAR 1:320

707 KAR 1:350

20 U.S.C. § 1400 et seq. Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA)

Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973

34 C.F.R. 104.35

RELATED POLICIES:

09.122; 09.123

EXPLANATION: SB 19 AMENDS KRS 158.175 REQUIRING LOCAL BOARDS TO ESTABLISH A POLICY AND PROCEDURE STATING THERE SHALL BE A MOMENT OF SILENCE OR REFLECTION AND INCLUDES SPECIFIC GUIDELINES FOR IMPLEMENTATION.
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: COST ASSOCIATED WITH THE REQUIRED NOTIFICATION

CURRICULUM AND INSTRUCTION

08.1351

Pledge of Allegiance & Moment of Silence or Reflection**PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE**~~STUDENT'S OPPORTUNITY TO PARTICIPATE~~

Each student shall be afforded the opportunity to begin each school day with the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag of the United States.¹

No student shall be required to participate in the Pledge against the student's or the parents' wishes.²

PART OF CURRICULUM

Each school/school council shall develop a plan for incorporating instruction covering the proper display of and respect for the flags of the United States and Kentucky into the social studies curriculum.¹

MOMENT OF SILENCE OR REFLECTION

The moment of silence or reflection shall occur at the commencement of the first class of each day and shall be implemented with the following guidelines¹:

- It shall be of at least one (1) minute but not to exceed two (2) minutes in duration;
- Students remain seated and silent and make no distracting display so that each student may, in the exercise of his or her individual choice, meditate, pray, or engage in any other silent activity which does not interfere with, distract from, or impede other students' exercise of individual choice;
- District personnel shall not provide instruction to any student regarding the nature of any reflection that a student may engage in during the moment of silence or reflection; and
- Notification shall be sent to parents/guardians providing information on the policy and encouraging them to provide guidance to their pupils regarding the moment of silence or reflection.

Formatted: ksba normal

Formatted: ksba normal

Formatted: ksba normal, Superscript

Formatted: ksba normal

Formatted: ksba normal

Formatted: policytext, Bulleted + Level: 1 + Aligned at: 0.25" + Indent at: 0.5"

Formatted: ksba normal

Formatted: ksba normal

REFERENCES:

¹KRS 158.175(2)

²OAG 80-456

LEGAL: SB 181 AMENDS KRS 161.120 PROVIDING AGE-APPROPRIATE INSTRUCTION ON CHILD SEXUAL ABUSE THROUGH CURRICULUM OR PROGRAMS AND REMOVES "WRITTEN" FROM REQUIRED NOTIFICATIONS.
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: NONE ANTICIPATED

CURRICULUM AND INSTRUCTION

08.13531

Human Sexuality

Per KRS 158.1415, if a school council or, if none exists, the Principal adopts a curriculum for human sexuality or sexually transmitted diseases, instruction shall include but not be limited to the following content:

- a) Abstinence from sexual activity is the desirable goal for all school-age children;
- b) Abstinence from sexual activity is the only certain way to avoid unintended pregnancy, sexually transmitted diseases, and other associated health problems;
- c) The best way to avoid sexually transmitted diseases and other associated health problems is to establish a permanent mutually faithful monogamous relationship;
- d) A school policy to respect parental rights by ensuring that:
 - 1. Children in grade five (5) and below do not receive any instruction through curriculum or programs on human sexuality or sexually transmitted diseases; or
 - 2. Any child, regardless of grade level, enrolled in the district does not receive any instruction or presentation that has a goal or purpose of students studying or exploring gender identity, gender expression, or sexual orientation; and
- e) A school policy to notify a parent in advance and obtain the parent's written consent before the parent's child in grade six (6) or above receives any instruction through curriculum or programs on human sexuality or sexually transmitted diseases.

CURRICULUM REQUIREMENTS

Any course, curriculum, or program offered by a public school on the subject of human sexuality provided by school personnel or by third parties authorized by the school shall:

- a) Provide an alternative course, curriculum, or program without any penalty to the student's grade or standing for students whose parents have not provided written consent as required by law;
- b) Be subject to an inspection by parents of participating students that allows parents to review the following materials:
 - 1) Curriculum;
 - 2) Instructional materials;
 - 3) Lesson plans;
 - 4) Assessments or tests;
 - 5) Surveys or questionnaires;
 - 6) Assignments; and
 - 7) Instructional activities;
- c) Be developmentally appropriate; and
- d) Be limited to a curriculum that has been subject to the reasonable review and response by stakeholders in conformity with KRS 160.345.

Human Sexuality**CURRICULUM REQUIREMENTS (CONTINUED)**

A public school offering any course, curriculum, or program on the subject of human sexuality shall provide ~~written~~ notification to the parents of a student at least two (2) weeks prior to the student's planned participation in the course, curriculum, or program. The ~~written~~ notification shall:

- a) Inform the parents of the provisions of the course or curriculum;
- b) Provide the date the course, curriculum, or program is scheduled to begin;
- c) Detail the process for a parent to review the materials;
- d) Explain the process for a parent to provide written consent for the student's participation in the course, curriculum, or program; and
- e) Provide the contact information for the teacher or instructor of the course, curriculum, or program and a school administrator designated with oversight.

This shall not prohibit school personnel from:

- a) Discussing human sexuality, including the sexuality of any historic person, group, or public figure, where the discussion provides necessary context in relation to a topic of instruction from a curriculum approved pursuant to KRS 160.345;
- b) Providing age-appropriate instruction on child sexual abuse through curriculum or programs in accordance with the standards set forth by the National Children's Alliance and approved by the Children's Advocacy Centers of Kentucky, regardless of grade level;
or
- c. Responding to a question from a student during class regarding human sexuality as it relates to a topic of instruction from a curriculum approved pursuant to KRS 160.345.

REFERENCES:

KRS 158.1415; KRS 160.345

RELATED POLICIES:

08.1; 08.23; 08.2322; 08.2324

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0.25", Numbered + Level: 2 +
Numbering Style: a, b, c, ... + Start at: 3 + Alignment:
Left + Aligned at: 0.75" + Indent at: 1"